## **U. S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION**

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **FORM 10-Q**

Quarterly Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2013.

Transition Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from \_\_\_\_\_to \_\_\_\_

Commission File Number 333-173215

# **CannaVEST Corp.**

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 80-0944970 (IRS Employer Identification No.)

2688 South Rainbow Avenue, Suite B Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 (Address of principal executive offices)

866-290-2157

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  $\boxtimes$  No £

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes £ No S

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer  $\pounds$ Non-accelerated filer  $\pounds$  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Accelerated filer £ Smaller reporting company S

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.) Yes £ No 🗵

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date: As of August 13, 2013, the issuer had 10,108,334 shares of issued and outstanding common stock, par value \$.0001.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1. Financial Statements	3
Condensed Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012	3
Condensed Statements of Operations (unaudited) for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012	4
Condensed Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) (unaudited) from December 31, 2011 to June 30, 2013	5
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012	6
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements (unaudited)	7
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	13
Item 3. Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	15
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	16
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	16
Item 1A. Risk Factors	16
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	16
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities	17
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures	17
Item 5. Other Information	17
Item 6. Exhibits	17
SIGNATURES	18

## **PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION**

## **Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

## CANNAVEST CORP. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 AND FOR THE THREE AND SIX MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

## **CANNAVEST CORP.** CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS		ne 30, 2013 Jnaudited	Dee	cember 31, 2012
Current Assets	U	nauunteu		
Cash	\$	76,670	\$	431
Accounts Receivable	ψ	1,561,496	ψ	731
Total Current Assets				431
Total Current Assets	-	1,638,166	-	431
Other Current Assets				
Prepaid Inventory		975,471		-
Inventory		2,177,823		_
Total Other Current Assets		3,153,294		-
Total Current Assets		4,791,460		431
Property and Equipment, Net		18,315		_
Other Acceta				
Other Assets Goodwill		26,998,125		
Intangibles, Net		4,995,895		_
Investment in KannaLife		500,000		_
Total Other Assets			1	
Total Other Assets		32,494,020		-
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	37,303,795	\$	431
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) Current Liabilities				
Accounts Payable	\$	27,134	\$	-
Accrued Interest		20,523		-
Amount due to related party		300		500
Other Current Liabilities				
PhytoSPHERE Agreement		23,750,000		-
Total Current Liabilities		23,797,957		500
Long Term Liabilities				
Due to Roen Ventures, LLC		3,280,500		_
Total Long Term Liabilities		3,280,500		_
TOTAL LIABILITIES		27,078,457		500
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) Common stock - par value \$0.0001; 190,000,000 shares authorized; 8,900,000 and 7,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,		200		700
respectively		890 10,643,257		700
Additional Paid in Capital Accumulated Deficit		(418,809)		143,447 (144,216)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)		10,225,338	_	(69)
TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)	\$	37,303,795	\$	431

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.

## CANNAVEST CORP. CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS UNAUDITED

	For the three months ended June 30,				For the six months ended June 30,			
		2013	,	2012	 2013	/	2012	
Revenue	\$	107,683	\$	_	\$ 1,190,058	\$	_	
Cost of Goods Sold		16,292		_	 221,742		_	
Gross Profit		91,391		_	 968,316		_	
Operating Expenses:								
General & Administrative		1,131,660		11,352	 1,222,386		27,396	
Operating loss		(1,040,269)		(11,352)	(254,070)		(27,396)	
Interest expense		(20,523)	_	(974)	 (20,523)		(1,852)	
Loss before taxes		(1,060,792)		(12,326)	(274,593)		(29,248)	
Provision for income taxes					 			
NET LOSS	\$	(1,060,792)	\$	(12,326)	\$ (274,593)	\$	(29,248)	
Loss per Share	\$	(0.12)	\$	(0.00)	\$ (0.03)	\$	(0.00)	
Weighted Average Number of Shares – Basic & Diluted		8,867,033		7,000,000	 8,246,961		7,000,000	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.

## CANNAVEST CORP.

## CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) For the period from December 31, 2011 to June 30, 2013

	Common Stock			Additional Paid In Accumulated			
-	Shares		Amount	 Capital		Deficit	 Total
Balance, December 31, 2011 (audited)	7,000,000	\$	700	\$ 59,800	\$	(98,605)	\$ (38,105)
Forgiveness of shareholder advances	_		_	83,647		_	83,647
Net loss	-		-	 _		(45,611)	 (45,611)
Balance, December 31, 2012 (audited)	7,000,000		700	143,447		(144,216)	(69)
Shares issued for first installment of PhytoSPHERE Agreement	900,000		90	4,499,910		_	4,500,000
Shares issued for second installment of PhytoSPHERE Agreement	1,000,000		100	5,999,900		_	6,000,000
Net loss						(274,593)	 (274,593)
Balance June 30, 2013 (unaudited)	8,900,000	\$	890	\$ 10,643,257	\$	(418,809)	\$ 10,225,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.

5

\_\_\_\_\_

### CANNAVEST CORP. CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 UNAUDITED

	For the six months ended,			nded.	
	June 30, 2013			June 30, 2012	
OPERATING ACTIVITIES					
Net Loss	\$	(274,593)	\$	(29,248)	
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:					
Amortization of intangible assets		951,492		-	
Change in operating assets and liabilities:					
Prepaid expense		_		1,750	
Prepaid inventory		285,039		-	
Accounts receivable		(1,165,059)		-	
Inventory		(1,832,345)		_	
Accounts payable and accrued expenses		47,657		9,143	
Net cash flows used in operating activities		(1,987,809)		(18,355)	
INVESTING ACTIVITIES					
Cash received on acquisition		50,775		_	
Purchase of property and equipment		(17,027)		_	
Cash paid on PhytoSPHERE agreement		(750,000)		-	
Investment in KannaLife		(500,000)		_	
Net cash flows used in investing activities		(1,216,252)		_	
FINANCING ACTIVITIES		2 200 500			
Proceeds from loan from Roen Ventures		3,280,500		-	
Proceeds from loan from related party		-		17,300	
Repayment of loan from related party		(200)		_	
Net cash flows from financing activities		3,280,300		17,300	
Net increase (decrease) in cash		76,239		(1,055)	
Cash, beginning of period		431		1,168	
Cash, end of period	\$	76,670	\$	113	
NON CASH TRANSACTION	¢	206 420			
Accounts receivable assumed from acquisitions	\$	396,438		-	
Inventory assumed from acquisitions		345,477		-	
Prepaid inventory assumed from acquisition		1,260,510		-	
Property and equipment assumed from acquisitions		1,288		-	
Intangible assets		5,947,387		-	
Goodwill		26,998,125		-	
Amount due from PhytoSPHERE agreement		(23,750,000)		-	
Common Shares issued for PhytoSPHERE Transaction		(10,500,000)		-	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed financial statements.

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

CannaVEST Corp. (formerly Foreclosure Solutions, Inc.) (the "Company", "we" or "us") was incorporated on December 9, 2010, in the state of Texas, to provide information on pre-foreclosure and foreclosed residential properties to homebuyers and real estate professionals on its website. However, the Company was not able to secure financing for this business plan and on November 16, 2012 the shareholders owning 6,979,900 of the outstanding shares sold their shares in private transactions to four buyers. Commensurate with this transaction the former officer and director resigned and control of the Company changed. In addition, the Company's business offices moved from Dallas, Texas to Las Vegas, Nevada. On January 29, 2013, the Company amended its Certificate of Formation to change its name to CannaVEST Corp. and on March 14, 2013, the Company increased the size of its board of directors and elected three independent directors. On July 26, 2013 the Company reincorporated in the state of Delaware.

On December 15, 2012, the Company entered into an Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets (the "PhytoSPHERE Agreement") with PhytoSPHERE Systems, LLC ("PhytoSPHERE") whereby upon the closing of the transaction the Company acquired certain assets of PhytoSPHERE in exchange for an aggregate payment of \$35,000,000 to be paid in five installments of either cash or common stock shares, as determined in the Company's sole discretion. The closing occurred on January 29, 2013, at which time the Company took delivery of the acquired assets and made its first installment payment in the amount of \$4,500,000 by issuing 900,000 common stock shares with a quoted market price on that date of \$5.00. On April 4, 2013, the Company made its second installment payment in the amount of \$6,000,000 by issuing 1,000,000 shares of common stock at a per share price of \$6.00, determined by the maximum price set forth in the PhytoSPHERE Agreement. During the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013, the Company paid \$750,000 in cash and on July 23, 2013, issued 1,208,334 shares at a per share price of \$6.00, determined by the maximum price set forth in the PhytoSPHERE Agreement, completing its third installment in the aggregate amount of \$8,000,004. The remaining installments are due on or before September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2013 in the amounts of \$9,999,996 and \$6,500,000, respectively.

The Company's business is that of developing, producing, marketing and selling end consumer products to the nutriceutical industry containing hemp plant extract, Cannabidoil (CBD) and reselling to third parties raw product acquired by the Company pursuant to its supply relationships in Europe.

## 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### **Basis of Presentation**

The accompanying unaudited condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All references to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") are in accordance with The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The unaudited condensed interim financial statements have been prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). The information furnished herein reflects all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals and adjustments) which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to fairly present the operating results for the respective periods. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally present in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These unaudited condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2012, filed with the SEC on the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K. The results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year ending December 31, 2013.

#### Use of Estimates

The Company's condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these condensed financial statements requires us to make significant estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates, including those related to contingencies, on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers amounts held by financial institutions and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. At each of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had no cash equivalents.

#### Concentration of credit risk

As of June 30, 2013, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provided insurance coverage of up to \$250,000 per depositor per bank. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe that the Company is exposed to significant risks from excess deposits.

#### Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of trade accounts arising in the normal course of business, and accounts receivable purchased by the Company from PhytoSPHERE under the PhytoSPHERE Agreement. No interest is charged on past due accounts. Accounts for which no payments have been received after 30 days are considered delinquent and customary collection efforts are initiated. Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less a reserve made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis.

Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual customer receivables and considering a customer's financial condition and credit history, and current economic conditions. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts at either June 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

#### **Revenue Recognition**

The Company will recognize revenue in accordance with ASC and SEC guidance which requires persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery of a product or service, a fixed or determinable price and assurance of collection within a reasonable period of time.

#### **Inventory**

Inventory is stated at lower of cost or market, with cost being determined on average cost basis. There was no reserve for inventory at either June 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

#### **Equipment**

Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost represents the purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring the asset into its existing use. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the assets' estimated useful lives. Maintenance or repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Upon sale or disposition, the historically recorded asset cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the net amount less proceeds from disposal is charged or credited to other income / expense.

#### Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with ASC Topic 825, *Financial Instruments*, the Company calculates the fair value of its assets and liabilities which qualify as financial instruments and includes this additional information in the notes to its financial statements when the fair value is different than the carrying value of those financial instruments. The estimated fair value of the Company's current assets and current liabilities approximates their carrying amount due to their readily available nature and short maturity.



#### Fair Value Measurements

ASC Topic 820, *Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurement and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company's adoption of fair value measurements and disclosures did not have a material impact on the financial statements and financial statement disclosures.

## Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of goodwill during the fourth quarter of each year and between annual evaluations if events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying amount. Such circumstances could include, but are not limited to (1) a significant adverse change in legal factors or in business climate, (2) unanticipated competition, or (3) an adverse action or assessment by a regulator. When evaluating whether goodwill is impaired, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to the reporting unit's carrying amount, including goodwill. The fair value of the reporting unit is estimated using a combination of the income, or discounted cash flows, approach and the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies' data. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the impairment loss must be measured. The impairment loss would be calculated by comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill to its carrying amount. In calculating the implied fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the other assets and liabilities of that unit based on their fair values. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amount assigned to its other assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill.

We make critical assumptions and estimates in completing impairment assessments of goodwill and other intangible assets. Our cash flow projections look several years into the future and include assumptions on variables such as future sales and operating margin growth rates, economic conditions, market competition, inflation and discount rates. A 10% decrease in the estimated discounted cash flows for the reporting units tested would result in an impairment that is not material to our results of operations. A 1.0 percentage point increase in the discount rate used would also result in an impairment that is not material to our results of operations.

We amortize the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives, which range up to ten years, unless such lives are deemed indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested in the third quarter of each fiscal year for impairment, or more often if indicators warrant.

#### Loss per Share

The Company calculates loss per share (EPS) in accordance with ASC Topic 260, *Earnings per Share*, which requires the computation and disclosure of two EPS amounts, basic and diluted. Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of common stock shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of common stock shares outstanding plus all potentially dilutive common stock shares outstanding during the period.

#### Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the related temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized when the rate change is enacted. Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company established valuation allowances equal to the full amount of its deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty of the utilization of the net operating losses in future periods. In accordance with ASC Topic 740, *Income Taxes*, the Company recognizes the effect of uncertain income tax positions only if the positions are more likely than not of being sustained in an audit, based on the technical merits of the position. Recognized uncertain income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which those changes in judgment occur.

#### Recent Issued and Newly Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

#### Adopted

Effective January 2013, we adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (ASU 2011-11). The amendments in ASU 2011-11 require the disclosure of information on offsetting and related arrangements for financial and derivative instruments to enable users of a company's financial statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position. Amendments under ASU 2011-11 will be applied retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after January 1, 2013. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Effective January 2013, we adopted FASB ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive (ASU 2013-02). This guidance is the culmination of the FASB's deliberation on reporting reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI). The amendments in ASU 2013-02 do not change the current requirements for reporting net income or other comprehensive income. However, the amendments require disclosure of amounts reclassified out of AOCI in its entirety, by component, on the face of the statement of operations or in the notes thereto. Amounts that are not required to be reclassified in their entirety to net income must be cross-referenced to other disclosures that provide additional detail. This standard is effective prospectively for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. The Company currently records its investment in KannaLife Sciences, Inc. ("KannaLife") at cost since it cannot exert significant influence or control.

#### Not Adopted

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date ("ASU No.2013-04"). The amendments in ASU 2013-04 provide guidance for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of ASU No. 2013-04 is fixed at the reporting date, except for obligations addressed within existing guidance in GAAP. The guidance requires an entity to measure those obligational amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. The guidance in ASU No. 2013-04 also requires an entity to disclose the nature and amount of the obligation as well as other information about those obligations. The amendment in this standard is effective retrospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. We are evaluating the effect, if any, adoption of ASU No. 2013-04 will have on our financial statements.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the SEC did not, or are not believed by management to, have a material impact on the Company's present or future financial statements.



#### 3. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS OF PHYTOSPHERE SYSTEMS, LLC

On December 31, 2012, we entered into the PhytoSPHERE Agreement with PhytoSPHERE whereby the Company acquired certain assets of PhytoSPHERE in exchange for an aggregate payment of \$35,000,000, payable in five (5) installments of either cash or common stock of the Company, in the sole discretion of the Company. The closing of the transactions contemplated by the PhytoSPHERE Agreement occurred on January 29, 2013. At the closing, the Company issued to PhytoSPHERE 900,000 shares of common stock in satisfaction of its first payment obligation due under the PhytoSPHERE Agreement. On April 4, 2013 the Company made its second installment payment in the amount of \$6,000,000 by issuing 1,000,000 shares of common stock to PhytoSPHERE with a per share price of \$6.00, determined by the maximum price set forth in the PhytoSPHERE Agreement. During the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013, the Company paid \$750,000 in cash and on July 23, 2013, issued 1,208,334 shares at a per share price of \$6.00, determined by the maximum price set forth in the PhytoSPHERE Agreement, completing its third installment in the aggregate amount of \$8,000,004. The remaining installments are due on or before September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2013 in the amounts of \$9,999,996 and \$6,500,000, respectively.

#### 4. INVESTMENT IN KANNALIFE SCIENCES, INC.

On March 4 and April 11, 2013, pursuant to a Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement"), the Company acquired a total of 2,039,626 shares of the Series A Preferred Stock of KannaLife, 11,960,000 shares of KannaLife's common stock and warrants to purchase additional shares of common stock in KannaLife. KannaLife is a Delaware corporation and phyto-medical company specializing in the research and development of pharmacological products derived from plants. These share holdings constituted a 16.65% share of the issued and outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and common stock of KannaLife as of June 30, 2013. The shares were acquired through two payments of \$250,000 each and included the exercise of a portion of the Company's common stock warrant. The Purchase Agreement also contemplates two additional closings of \$250,000 on or before July 1, 2013 and October 1, 2013. The Company has not yet consummated the third closing, as it awaits financial reports and outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and common 33.3% of the issued and outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and common stock and outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and common stock and outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and common stock of KannaLife.

## 5. LINE OF CREDIT - ROEN VENTURES

On March 1, 2013, the Company entered into a lending arrangement with Roen Ventures, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company ("Roen Ventures"), which is owned 50% by the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer who is also a director, Michael Mona, Jr. The Promissory Note (the "Note") issued to Roen Ventures provides a line of credit up to \$4,000,000, bears interest at 5.0% and is unsecured. As previously disclosed in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 31, 2013, on July 25, 2013, the disinterested members of our Board of Directors approved an amendment to the terms of the Note to increase the line of credit to \$6,000,000 and provide for the ability of Roen Ventures to convert, in its sole discretion, the outstanding balance of the Note into shares of the common stock of the Company at a conversion price to be determined following the conclusion of an independent valuation of the common stock of the Company. There are no specific repayment terms except that all unpaid principal and accrued interest under the Note is due and payable on March 1, 2015. As of June 30, 2013, the Company had a balance of \$3,280,500 on this Note.

## 6. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

#### Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 190,000,000 shares of common stock (par value \$0.0001). As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had 8,900,000 and 7,000,000 common stock shares issued and outstanding, respectively. On January 29, 2013, the Company issued 900,000 shares of Common Stock to PhytoSPHERE in connection with the Company's acquisition of assets from PhytoSPHERE and in satisfaction of the first payment obligation to PhytoSPHERE (Note 3). On April 4, 2013, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock to PhytoSPHERE in satisfaction of its second payment obligation to PhytoSPHERE (Note 3). On July 23, 2013, the Company issued 1,208,334 shares of common stock to PhytoSPHERE in partial satisfaction of its third payment obligation to PhytoSPHERE (Note 3). The Company satisfied its remaining obligation to PhytoSPHERE on the third payment of cash.

#### Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of \$.0001 par value preferred stock with designations, rights and preferences to be determined from time to time by the board of directors of the Company (the "Board"). Accordingly, the Board is empowered, without shareholder approval, to issue preferred stock with dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights which could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the common stock holders. In the event of issuance, the preferred stock could be utilized, under certain circumstances, as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company. If the Company issues preferred stock shares and the Company is subsequently liquidated or dissolved, the preferred shareholders may have preferential rights to receive a liquidating distribution for their shares prior to any distribution to common shareholders.

#### **Options/Warrants**

As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, there were no outstanding options or warrants for the purchase of the Company's common stock.

#### 7. COMMITMENTS

The Company leases its office space pursuant to a month-to-month lease agreement dated April 1, 2013, which provides for a monthly rent of \$1,500. The landlord is a limited liability company of which a director of the Company is the sole member.

On March 18, 2013, the Company entered into a purchasing contract with a third party supplier of CBD to provide up to a maximum of 1,000 kg of product. In addition the Company entered into a consulting agreement with the third party supplier to provide consulting oversight for the growth and production of the product from the period beginning March 1, 2013 through August 30, 2014.

## 8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 23, 2013, the Company issued PhytoSPHERE 1,208,334 shares of its common stock in partial satisfaction of its third payment obligation due under the PhytoSPHERE Agreement. The Company satisfied its remaining obligation to PhytoSPHERE on the third payment by payment of cash.

On July 25, 2013 the shareholders approved the Company's 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan") which reserves 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock for issuance under the Plan. There are currently no option shares outstanding under the Plan.



## Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

#### **Forward-Looking Statements**

The following information specifies certain forward-looking statements of the management of CannaVEST Corp. (the "Company", "we" or "us"). Forward-looking statements are statements that estimate the likelihood of occurrence of future events and are not based on historical fact. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as "may", "shall", "could", "expect", "estimate", "anticipate", "predict", "probable", "possible", "should", "continue", or similar terms, variations of those terms or the negative of those terms. The forward-looking statements specified in the following information have been compiled by our management on the basis of assumptions made by management and considered by management to be reasonable. Our future operating results, however, are impossible to predict, and no representation, guaranty, or warranty is to be inferred from those forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Statements relating to our future business and financial performance;
- The anticipated launch of our products; and
- Other material future developments that you may take into consideration.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The assumptions used for purposes of the forward-looking statements represent estimates of future events and are subject to uncertainty as to possible changes in economic, legislative, industry and other circumstances. As a result, the identification and interpretation of data and other information and their use in developing and selecting assumptions from and among reasonable alternatives require the exercise of judgment. To the extent that the assumed events do not occur, the outcome may vary substantially from anticipated or projected results, and, accordingly, no opinion is expressed on the achievability of those forward-looking statements. We cannot guaranty that any of the assumptions relating to the forward-looking statements specified in the following information are accurate, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking statement.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the information contained in the unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included within this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013 (this "Report"), and the Notes thereto, which form an integral part of this Report.

#### **Executive Summary of Our Business**

We are in the business of developing, producing, marketing and selling end consumer products to the nutriceutical industry containing the hemp plant extract, Cannabidoil ("CBD"), and reselling to third parties raw product acquired by us pursuant to our supply relationships in Europe. We seek to take advantage of an emerging worldwide trend to re-energize the production of industrial hemp and to foster its many uses for consumers. CBD is derived from hemp stalk and seed.

To date, our operations have consisted of supplying our raw product to third parties. We anticipate launching our first product to large commercial buyers in the third quarter of 2013, and having products on the market available to consumers shortly thereafter. Our line of products is expected to grow throughout the year – by year end 2013 we anticipate a full line of CBD and hemp-related consumer products.

In order to accomplish our business plan, we will need to finalize the development of our products and implement a marketing and sales program designed to establish brand awareness and consumer acceptance of our products. To date, the sole source of our working capital has been a line of credit of up to \$4,000,000 from Roen Ventures, LLC ("Roen Ventures"). As previously disclosed in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 31, 2013, on July 25, 2013, the disinterested members of our Board of Directors approved an amendment to the terms of the credit line with Roen Ventures to increase the credit line to \$6,000,000 and provide for the ability of Roen Ventures to convert, in its sole discretion, the outstanding balance of the credit line into shares of the common stock of the Company at a conversion price to be determined following the conclusion of an independent valuation of the common stock of the Company. In addition, we expect to realize revenue to fund our working capital needs through the sale of raw product to third parties and the Roen Ventures line of credit. If not, we may never be able to achieve profitable operations. In that event, our ability to continue as a going concern would be in jeopardy and investors could lose all of their investment in the Company.

The Company was originally incorporated as Foreclosure Solutions, Inc. on December 9, 2010, in the State of Texas, to provide information on pre-foreclosure and foreclosed residential properties to homebuyers and real estate professionals on its website. However, the Company was not able to secure financing for this business plan and on November 16, 2012, the shareholders owning 6,979,900 of the outstanding shares sold their shares in private transactions to four buyers. Commensurate with this transaction, the former sole officer and director of the Company resigned and control of the Company changed all as further described in the Amendment to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2013.

## **Plan of Operations**

#### **Our Planned Operating Segments**

We plan to diversify our business primarily into three operating segments:

- Securing and supplying raw hemp product for sale to third parties;
- Developing, producing, marketing and selling consumer products to the nutriceutical industry containing hemp plant extract, CBD; and
- Investing in companies in our industry.

#### **Investment Selection**

We are committed to a value-oriented investment philosophy that seeks to minimize the risk of capital loss without foregoing potential capital appreciation. We are developing criteria that we believe are important in identifying and investing in prospective acquisition or financing targets. These criteria provide general guidelines for our investment and acquisition decisions.

#### **Results of Operations**

The following discussion of our results of operations should be read in conjunction with our financial statements included herewith. This discussion should not be construed to imply that the results discussed herein will necessarily continue into the future, or that any conclusion reached herein will necessarily be indicative of actual operating results in the future. Such discussion represents only the best present assessment of our management.

## Results for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

#### **Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold**

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2013, the Company realized revenues of \$107,683 and resulting gross profit of \$91,391 related to the sale of raw materials to third parties. The Company realized no revenues for the same period ended June 30, 2012. The increase in revenues is due to the revised business plan of the Company, enacted for fiscal year 2013 to sell hemp oil and related products. During fiscal year 2012, the Company had not begun operations under the prior business model as it was unable to secure financing for that business model.

#### **General and Administrative Expenses**

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2013 the Company incurred General and Administrative costs in the amount of \$1,131,660 compared with \$11,352 for the period ended June 30, 2012. This increase is related to the cost of ramping up the operations of the Company and implementation of its revised business strategy related to the development, production, marketing and selling products containing hemp plant extract, CBD, and reselling raw product acquired by the Company to third parties. This amount also includes amortization of the right to purchase inventory and non-compete agreements acquired through the PhytoSPHERE Agreement.

#### Results for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

#### **Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold**

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2013, the Company realized revenues of \$1,190,058 and resulting gross profit of \$968,316 related to the sale of raw materials to third parties. The Company realized no revenues for the same period ended June 30, 2012. The increase in revenues is due to the revised business plan of the Company, enacted for fiscal year 2013 to sell hemp oil and related products. During fiscal year 2012, the Company had not begun operations under the prior business model as it was unable to secure financing for that business model.

#### **General and Administrative Expenses**

For the six month period ended June 30, 2013, the Company incurred General and Administrative costs in the amount of \$1,222,386 compared with \$27,396 for the same period ended June 30, 2012. This increase is related to the cost of ramping up the operations of the Company and implementation of its revised business strategy related to the development, production, marketing and selling products containing hemp plant extract, CBD, and reselling raw product acquired by the Company to third parties. This amount also includes amortization of the right to purchase inventory and non-compete agreements acquired through the PhytoSPHERE Agreement.

#### Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had a cash balance of \$76,670. In addition, as of June 30, 2013, the Company had \$719,500 available pursuant to the terms of the Roen Ventures line of credit, which has been our primary source of liquidity. We will need to raise additional funds through the issuance of debt or sale of our securities in order to continue funding our ongoing operations through fiscal year 2013.

The Company is a party to contracts for the growth and processing of hemp oil product to be delivered over the period beginning August 1, 2013 and ending August 31, 2014. The total amount remaining to be paid under such contracts is approximately 2.74 million Euros or approximately \$3.56 million through May 31, 2014.

Our common stock currently trades on the OTCBB under the symbol "CANV."

## Liquidity and Going Concern

The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. At June 30, 2013, the Company had a working capital deficit of \$(18,906,497) and an accumulated deficit of \$418,809. The working capital deficit is primarily a result of an amount of \$23,750,000 due as a result of the acquisition of a license and certain assets of PhytoSPHERE. Through June 30, 2013, the Company borrowed \$3,280,500 under the Roen Ventures line of credit. These funds were used in ongoing operations, to fund the Company's payment obligations pursuant to the investment in KannaLife Sciences, Inc., to purchase raw product for resale and explore investment opportunities. The Company needs to raise additional capital from external sources in order to sustain operations while executing its business plan. The Company cannot provide any assurance that it will be able to raise additional capital. If the Company is unable to secure additional capital, it may be required to reduce its current operating expenses, modify its existing business plan and take additional measures to reduce costs in order to conserve its cash in amounts sufficient to sustain operations and meet its obligations.

We have generated minimal revenues since our inception, although we have sold and shipped raw product to third parties for which we have only received payments totaling approximately \$30,000. Our revenues alone are currently insufficient to pay our operating expenses and our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to obtain the necessary financing to meet our obligations and repay our current and future liabilities when they become due until such time, if ever, that we are able to generate sufficient revenues to attain profitable operations. We have experienced losses and negative cash flows from operations since inception. The report of our independent registered public accounting firm on our financial statements for fiscal year end 2013 contained an explanatory paragraph regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. There can be no assurance that acceptable financing to fund our ongoing operations can be obtained on suitable terms, if at all. If we are unable to obtain the financing necessary to support our operations, we may be unable to continue as a going concern. In that event, we may be forced to cease operations and our shareholders could lose their entire investment in the Company.

#### Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable to a "smaller reporting company" as defined in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K.



#### Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

## DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management, which is comprised of one person holding the offices of principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of the end of the period covered by this report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on such evaluation, our management concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective, at a reasonable assurance level, as of the Evaluation Date, to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under that Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management in a manner that allows timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's procedures and internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2013. In making this assessment, the Company used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on that evaluation, the Company's management concluded that the Company's internal controls over financial reporting were not effective in that there was a material weakness as of June 30, 2013.

A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by the Company's internal controls.

The Company's management has identified a material weakness in the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting related to a shortage of resources in the accounting department required to assure appropriate segregation of duties with employees having appropriate accounting qualifications related to the Company's unique industry accounting and disclosure rules.

#### CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with our evaluation that occurred during our the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

## **PART II - OTHER INFORMATION**

#### Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None.

#### Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Not required for "smaller reporting companies."

#### Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Stock Issuances

On April 4, 2013, we issued 1,000,000 shares of restricted common stock to PhytoSPHERE pursuant to the terms the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets (the "PhytoSPHERE Agreement") in satisfaction of our second payment obligation due under the PhytoSPHERE Agreement. The shares represent 9.89% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock as of August 13, 2013, and were calculated based on a price per share of our common stock of \$6.00 pursuant to the terms of the PhytoSPHERE Agreement for an aggregate total value of \$6,000,000.

The shares of common stock referenced herein were issued in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration afforded by the provisions of Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ("Securities Act"), and/or Regulation D, as promulgated by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act, based upon the following: (a) each of the persons to whom the shares of common stock were issued (each such person, an "Investor") confirmed to the Company that it is an "accredited investor," as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act and has such background, education and experience in financial and business matters as to be able to evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the securities, (b) there was no public offering or general solicitation with respect to the offering of such shares, (c) each investor was provided with certain disclosure materials and all other information requested with respect to the Company, (d) each investor acknowledged that all securities being purchased were being purchased for investment intent and were "restricted securities" for purposes of the Securities Act, and agreed to transfer such securities only in a transaction registered under the Securities Act or exempt from registration under the Securities Act and (e) a legend has been, or will be, placed on the certificates representing each such security stating that it was restricted and could only be transferred if subsequently registered under the Securities Act or transferred in a transaction exempt from registration under the Securities Act.

There were no repurchases of equity securities by the Company during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013.

#### Item 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

## Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

## **Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION**

None.

## Item 6. EXHIBITS:

Exhibit No.	Description of Exhibit
2.1*	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 25, 2013, by and between CannaVEST Corp., a Texas corporation, and
	CannaVEST Corp., a Delaware corporation.
3.1*	Certificate of Incorporation of CannaVEST Corp., as filed on January 26, 2013
3.2*	Bylaws of CannaVEST Corp., dated as of January 26, 2013
4.1(1)	CannaVEST Corp. Specimen Stock Certificate.
10.1(1)	CannaVEST Corp. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan
31.1*	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1*	Certification of Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
	pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
99.1*	Temporary Hardship Exemption Provided by Rule 201
101 INS**	XBRL Instance Document
101 SCH**	XBRL Schema Document
101 CAL**	XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
101 LAB**	XBRL Labels Linkbase Document
101 PRE**	XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
101 DEF**	XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

\* Filed herewith.

\*\* To be filed by amendment per Rule 201 of Regulation S-T.

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment and the non-public information has been filed separately with the Commission.

(1) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 2013.

\*

## SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CANNAVEST CORP.

August 13, 2013

By: /s/ Michael Mona, Jr.

Michael Mona, Jr. (President and Chief Executive Officer)

#### AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

This AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (the "<u>Merger Agreement</u>"), dated as of July 25, 2013, is made and entered into by and between CannaVEST Corp., a Texas corporation ("<u>CannaVEST (Texas)</u>"), and CannaVEST Corp., a Delaware corporation ("<u>CannaVEST (Delaware)</u>"). CannaVEST (Texas) and CannaVEST (Delaware) are hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the "<u>Constituent Corporations</u>."

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, CannaVEST (Texas) is the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware);

WHEREAS, CannaVEST (Texas), as the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware), desires to effect a merger of CannaVEST (Texas) with and into CannaVEST (Delaware) pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Business Organizations Code (the "**TBOC**") and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "**DGCL**");

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Directors of CannaVEST (Texas) and CannaVEST (Delaware) have determined that it is advisable and in the best interest of each of such corporations, the shareholders of CannaVEST (Texas) and the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware) that CannaVEST (Texas) merge with and into CannaVEST (Delaware) upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Merger Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of CannaVEST (Texas) has, by resolution duly adopted, approved this Merger Agreement and directed that this Merger Agreement be executed by the undersigned officer and that this Merger Agreement be submitted to the shareholders of CannaVEST (Texas) for their consideration and adoption;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of CannaVEST (Delaware) has, by resolution duly adopted, approved this Merger Agreement and directed that this Merger Agreement be executed by the undersigned officer and that this Merger Agreement be submitted to the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware) for its consideration and adoption;

WHEREAS, CannaVEST (Texas), in its capacity as the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware), has adopted and approved this Merger Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is the express intention of the Constituent Corporations that: (i) this Merger Agreement, and the adoption of resolutions by the appropriate persons on behalf of each of the Constituent Corporations authorizing and approving the merger of CannaVEST (Texas) with and into CannaVEST (Delaware), constitute a plan of reorganization for purposes of Sections 368(a), 354(a) and 361(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "<u>Code</u>"), and corresponding provisions of applicable state laws (and successor provisions); and (ii) the merger of CannaVEST (Texas) with and into CannaVEST (Delaware) pursuant to this Merger Agreement is to be treated as a reorganization pursuant to Section 368(a)(1)(F) of the Code and corresponding provisions of applicable state laws (and successor provisions).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements and provisions herein contained, the parties agree that CannaVEST (Texas) shall be merged with and into CannaVEST (Delaware) and that the terms and conditions of the merger, the mode of carrying the merger into effect, the manner of converting the shares of the Constituent Corporations and certain other provisions relating to the merger shall be as set forth in this Merger Agreement:

#### ARTICLE I

#### THE MERGER

Section 1.01. <u>Surviving Corporation</u>. Subject to the terms and provisions of this Merger Agreement, and in accordance with the applicable Sections of the TBOC and the DGCL, at the Effective Date and Time (as defined in Section 1.07 of this Merger Agreement), CannaVEST (Texas) shall be merged with and into CannaVEST (Delaware) (the "<u>Merger</u>"). CannaVEST (Delaware) shall be the surviving corporation (hereinafter sometimes called the "<u>Surviving Corporation</u>") of the Merger and shall continue its corporate existence under the laws of the State of Delaware. At the Effective Date and Time, the separate corporate existence of CannaVEST (Texas) shall cease.

Section 1.02. Effects of the Merger. At the Effective Date and Time, the Merger shall have the effects provided for in this Merger Agreement and in Section 259 of the DGCL and Section 10.008 of the TBOC.

Section 1.03. <u>Certificate of Incorporation</u>. As of the Effective Date and Time, the Certificate Incorporation of CannaVEST (Delaware), as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time, shall be amended and superseded in its entirety by the Amended Certificate of Incorporation attached hereto as Annex I, which Amended Certificate of Incorporation shall become, at the Effective Date and Time, the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter duly amended in accordance with the provisions thereof and applicable law.

Section 1.04. <u>Bylaws</u>. As of the Effective Date and Time, the Bylaws of CannaVEST (Delaware), as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time, shall be the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter duly amended in accordance with the provisions thereof, the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation and applicable law.

Section 1.05. <u>Directors of the Surviving Corporation</u>. At and after the Effective Date and Time and until changed in the manner provided in the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation or applicable law, the number of directors of the Surviving Corporation shall be the number of directors of CannaVEST (Texas) immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time. At the Effective Date and Time, each individual who is a director of CannaVEST (Texas) immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time shall become a director of the Surviving Corporation and each such individual shall serve as a director of the Surviving Corporation for the balance of the term for which such individual was elected a director of CannaVEST (Texas) and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified in the manner provided in the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided in the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided in the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation or applicable law.

Section 1.06. <u>Officers of the Surviving Corporation</u>. At the Effective Date and Time, each individual who is an officer of CannaVEST (Texas) immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time shall become an officer of the Surviving Corporation, with each such individual to hold the same office in the Surviving Corporation, in accordance with the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation, as he or she held in CannaVEST (Texas) immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time.

Section 1.07. <u>Effective Date and Time</u>. The Merger shall become effective in accordance with the provisions of Sections 252 and 103 of the DGCL and Section 10.007 of the TBOC and, upon the later to occur of: (a) the filing of a certificate of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas; and (b) the filing of a certificate of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The date and time when the Merger shall become effective is referred to in this Merger Agreement as the "<u>Effective Date and Time</u>."

Section 1.08. <u>Additional Actions</u> If, at any time after the Effective Date and Time, the Surviving Corporation shall consider or be advised that any further conveyances, assignments, transfers, deeds or other instruments or further acts are necessary or proper (a) to vest, perfect or confirm, of record or otherwise, in the Surviving Corporation, title to and possession of any property or right of CannaVEST (Texas) acquired or to be acquired by reason of, or as a result of, the Merger, or (b) otherwise to carry out the purposes of this Merger Agreement, CannaVEST (Texas) and its proper officers and directors shall be deemed to have granted hereby to the Surviving Corporation an irrevocable power of attorney to execute and deliver all such further conveyances, assignments, transfers, deeds and other instruments and to do all such further acts as are necessary and proper to vest, perfect or confirm title to and the possession of such property or right in the Surviving Corporation and otherwise to carry out the purposes of this Merger Agreement; and the proper officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation and otherwise to carry out the purposes of this Merger Agreement; and the proper officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation and otherwise to carry out the purposes of this Merger Agreement; and the proper officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation are hereby fully authorized in the name of CannaVEST (Texas) or otherwise to take any and all such actions as contemplated by this Section 1.08.

#### ARTICLE II

#### MANNER, BASIS AND EFFECT OF CONVERTING SHARES

#### Section 2.01. Conversion of Shares. At the Effective Date and Time:

- (a) Each share of Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share (the "<u>CannaVEST (Texas) Shares</u>"), of CannaVEST (Texas) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holder thereof, be converted into one fully paid and non-assessable Common Share, par value \$0.0001 per share (the "<u>CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares</u>"), of CannaVEST (Delaware);
- (b) Each CannaVEST (Texas) Share held in the treasury of CannaVEST (Texas) immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of CannaVEST (Texas), be converted into one fully paid and non-assessable CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Share and shall be held in the treasury of the Surviving Corporation; and
- (c) Each CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of CannaVEST (Texas), be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and shall not be converted into shares or other securities of the Surviving Corporation or the right to receive cash or any other property or rights.

## Section 2.02. Effect of Conversion.

- (a) At and after the Effective Date and Time, each share certificate which immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time represented outstanding CannaVEST (Texas) Shares (a "<u>Texas Certificate</u>") shall be deemed for all purposes to evidence ownership of, and to represent, the number of CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares into which the CannaVEST (Texas) Shares represented by such Texas Certificate immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time have been converted pursuant to Section 2.01 of this Merger Agreement. The registered holder of any Texas Certificate outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time, as such holder appears in the books and records of CannaVEST (Texas), or of the transfer agent in respect of the CannaVEST (Texas) Shares, immediately prior to the Effective Date and Time, shall, until such Texas Certificate is surrendered for transfer or exchange, have and be entitled to exercise any voting and other rights with respect to and to receive any dividends or other distributions on the CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares into which the CannaVEST (Texas) Shares represented by any such Texas Certificate have been converted pursuant to Section 2.01 of this Merger Agreement.
- (b) Each holder of a Texas Certificate shall, upon the surrender of such Texas Certificate to CannaVEST (Delaware), or the transfer agent in respect of the CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares, for cancellation after the Effective Date and Time, be entitled to receive from CannaVEST (Delaware), or the transfer agent in respect of the CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares, a certificate (a "Delaware Certificate") representing the number of CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares into which the CannaVEST (Texas) Shares represented by such Texas Certificate have been converted pursuant to Section 2.01 of this Merger Agreement. If any such Texas Certificate is to be issued in a name other than that in which the Texas Certificate surrendered for exchange is registered, such exchange shall be conditioned upon (i) the Texas Certificate so surrendered being properly endorsed or otherwise in proper form for transfer and (ii) the person requesting such exchange either paying any transfer or other taxes required by reason of the issuance of the Texas Certificate in a name other than that of the registered holder of the Texas Certificate surrendered, or establishing to the satisfaction of CannaVEST (Delaware), or the transfer agent in respect of the CannaVEST (Delaware), or the transfer agent in respect of the CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares, that such tax has been paid or is not applicable.
- (c) Where no Texas Certificate has been issued in the name of a holder of CannaVEST (Texas) Shares, a "book entry" (i.e., a computerized or manual entry) shall be made in the shareholder records of CannaVEST (Delaware) to evidence the issuance to such holder of an equal number of CannaVEST (Delaware) Common Shares.



#### ARTICLE III

#### ADOPTION; AMENDMENT; TERMINATION; MISCELLANEOUS

Section 3.01. <u>Adoption by Stockholders of CannaVEST (Texas) and CannaVEST (Delaware)</u>. This Merger Agreement shall be submitted to the shareholders of CannaVEST (Texas) for their consideration and adoption by written consent in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.201 of the TBOC and Section 252 of the DGCL. This Merger Agreement has been approved and adopted by the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware) by written consent in accordance with the provisions of Section 252 of the DGCL. Upon approval of this Merger Agreement by the shareholders of CannaVEST (Texas) and the sole stockholder of CannaVEST (Delaware), the certificates of merger shall be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas and the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, as contemplated by Section 1.07 of this Merger Agreement.

Section 3.02. <u>Amendment</u>. Subject to applicable law, this Merger Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented by written agreement of the Constituent Corporations, after authorization of such action by the Boards of Directors of the Constituent Corporations, at any time prior to the filing of certificates of merger, as contemplated by Section 1.07 of this Merger Agreement, with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas and with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, except that after the adoption of this Merger Agreement by the stockholders of CannaVEST (Texas) contemplated by Section 3.01 of this Merger Agreement, there shall be no amendments to this Merger Agreement that would: (a) alter or change the amount or kind of shares or other property or rights to be received by the holders of any class or series of shares of either of the Constituent Corporations in the Merger; (b) alter or change any term of the Amended Certificate of incorporation or the Bylaws of CannaVEST (Delaware) to be effected by the Merger; or (c) alter or change any of the terms and conditions of this Merger Agreement if such alteration or change would adversely affect the holders of any class or series of shares of shares of shares of either of the Constituent Corporations.

Section 3.03. <u>Termination and Abandonment</u>. At any time prior to the filing of certificates of merger, as contemplated by Section 1.07 of this Merger Agreement, with the Secretary of State of the State of Texas and with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, this Merger Agreement may be terminated and the Merger may be abandoned by the Board of Directors of either CannaVEST (Delaware) or CannaVEST (Texas), or both, notwithstanding adoption of this Merger Agreement by the shareholders of CannaVEST (Texas).

Section 3.04. <u>Counterparts</u>. This Merger Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be a duplicate original, but all of which, taken together, shall be deemed to constitute a single instrument.

Section 3.05. <u>Designated Agent in Delaware</u>. The Surviving Corporation agrees that it may be served with process in the State of Delaware in any proceeding for enforcement of any obligation of CannaVEST (Texas), as well as for enforcement of any obligation of the Surviving Corporation arising from the Merger. The Surviving Corporation has irrevocably appointed an agent to accept service of process in any such suit or other proceeding and such agent's information is on file with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CannaVEST (Texas) and CannaVEST (Delaware) have caused this Merger Agreement to be signed by their respective duly authorized officers as of the date first written above.

CannaVEST Corp., a Texas corporation

/s/ Michael Mona, Jr.

Name: Michael Mona, Jr. Title: President CannaVEST Corp., a Delaware corporation

/s/ Michael Mona, Jr.

Name: Michael Mona, Jr. Title: President

#### CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF CANNAVEST CORP.

The undersigned, a natural person (the "Sole Incorporator"), for the purpose of organizing a corporation to conduct the business and promote the purposes hereunder stated, under the provisions and subject to the requirements of the laws of the State of Delaware, hereby certifies that:

#### ARTICLE I.

The name of the corporation is CannaVEST Corp. (the "Corporation").

#### ARTICLE II.

The address of the registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808, County of New Castle, and the name of the registered agent of the Corporation in the State of Delaware at such address is Corporation Service Company.

#### ARTICLE III.

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation may be organized under the General Corporation Law of Delaware ("DGCL").

#### ARTICLE IV.

The Corporation is authorized to issue two classes of shares of stock to be designated as "Common Stock" and "Preferred Stock." The total number of shares that the Corporation shall have the authority to issue is Two Hundred Million (200,000,000). The total number of shares of Common Stock shall be One Hundred Ninety Million (190,000,000), and each such share shall have a par value of \$0.0001; and the total number of shares of Preferred Stock shall be Ten Million (10,000,000), and each such share shall have a par value of \$0.0001.

(a) <u>Common Stock</u>. The Corporation is authorized to issue shares of Common Stock from time to time, which shall have all of the rights normally associated with shares of common stock under the DGCL.

(b) <u>Preferred Stock</u>. The Corporation is authorized to issue shares of Preferred Stock from time to time in one or more series or classes, each such share or class to have such distinctive designation or title as may be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board"), duly adopted prior to the issuance of any shares thereof. Each such series or class shall have such voting powers, if any, and such preferences and/or other special rights, with such qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights as shall be stated in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such series or class of shares of Preferred Stock.

#### ARTICLE V.

The Board is authorized to make, adopt, amend, alter or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation (the "Bylaws"). The stockholders shall also have power to make, adopt, amend, alter or repeal the Bylaws.

#### ARTICLE VI.

The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the Board. In addition to the powers and authority expressly conferred upon them by statute or by this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, the directors are hereby empowered to exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as may be exercised or done by the Corporation. Election of directors need not be by written ballot, unless the Bylaws so provide.

#### ARTICLE VII.

The name and mailing address of the Sole Incorporator are as follows:

Jessica Swift Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch LLP 525 B Street, Suite 2200 San Diego, CA 92101

#### ARTICLE VIII.

A. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, as the same exists or as may hereafter be amended, a director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director.

B. The Corporation shall indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by law any person made or threatened to be made a party to an action or proceeding, whether criminal, civil, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he, his testator or intestate is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or any predecessor of the Corporation, or serves or served at any other enterprise as a director or officer at the request of the Corporation or any predecessor to the Corporation.

C. Neither any amendment nor repeal of this Article VIII nor the adoption of any provision of the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation inconsistent with this Article VIII, shall eliminate or reduce the effect of this Article VIII in respect of any matter occurring, or any action or proceeding accruing or arising or that, but for this Article VIII, would accrue or arise, prior to such amendment, repeal or adoption of an inconsistent provision.

## ARTICLE IX.

The Corporation reserves the right to amend or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon a stockholder herein are granted subject to this reservation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate of Incorporation has been subscribed this 26<sup>th</sup> day of July, 2013, by the undersigned who affirms that the statements made hereto are true and correct.

/s/ Jessica Swift

Jessica Swift, Sole Incorporator

## BYLAWS

OF

CANNAVEST CORP. (a Delaware corporation)

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## Page

ARTICLE	I CORPORATE OFFICES	1
1.1	Registered Office.	1
1.2	Other Offices.	1
ARTICLE	II MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS	1
2.1	Place of Meetings.	1
2.2	Annual Meeting.	1
2.3	Special Meeting.	1
2.4	Notice of Stockholders' Meetings.	2
2.5	Manner of Giving Notice; Affidavit of Notice.	2
2.6	Quorum.	2
2.7	Adjourned Meeting; Notice.	2
2.8	Organization; Conduct of Business.	2
2.9	Voting.	3
2.10	Waiver of Notice.	3
2.11	Stockholder Action By Written Consent Without A Meeting.	3
2.12	Record Date for Stockholder Notice; Voting; Giving Consents.	4
2.13	Proxies.	4
ARTICLE	III DIRECTORS	4
3.1	Powers.	4
3.2	Number of Directors.	5
3.3	Election, Qualification and Term of Office of Directors.	5
3.4	Resignation and Vacancies.	5
3.5	Place of Meetings; Meetings by Telephone.	6
3.6	Regular Meetings.	6
3.7	Special Meetings; Notice.	6
3.8	Quorum.	7
3.9	Waiver of Notice.	7
3.10	Board Action By Written Consent Without A Meeting.	7
3.11	Fees and Compensation of Directors.	7
3.12	Approval of Loans to Officers.	7
3.13	Removal of Directors.	8
3.14	Chairman of the Board of Directors.	8
3.15	Conduct of Business.	8
ARTICLE	<b>IV COMMITTEES</b>	8
4.1	Committees of Directors.	8
4.2	Committee Minutes.	9
4.3	Meetings and Action of Committees.	9
4.4	Subcommittees.	9

i

ARTICLE	V OFFICERS	9
5.1	Officers.	9
5.2	Appointment of Officers.	9
5.3	Subordinate Officers.	9
5.4	Removal and Resignation of Officers.	10
5.5	Vacancies in Offices.	10
5.6	Chief Executive Officer.	10
5.7	President.	10
5.8	Vice Presidents.	10
5.9	Secretary and Assistant Secretary.	10
5.10	Chief Financial Officer.	11
5.11	Representation of Shares of Other Corporations.	11
5.12	Authority and Duties of Officers.	11
ARTICLE	VI INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS	12
6.1	Right to Indemnification.	12
6.2	Right of Claimant to Bring Action Against the Corporation.	12
6.3	Non-Exclusivity.	13
6.4	Indemnification Contracts.	13
6.5	Insurance.	13
6.6	Survival of Indemnification.	13
6.7	Effect of Amendment.	13
6.8	Saving Clause.	13
ARTICLE	VII RECORDS AND REPORTS	13
7.1	Maintenance and Inspection of Records.	13
7.2	Inspection by Directors.	14
ARTICLE	VIII GENERAL MATTERS	14
8.1	Checks.	14
8.2	Execution of Corporate Contracts and Instruments.	14
8.3	Stock Certificates; Partly Paid Shares.	15
8.4	Special Designation on Certificates.	15
8.5	Lost Certificates.	15
8.6	Construction; Definitions.	15
8.7	Dividends.	16
8.8	Fiscal Year.	16
8.9	Seal.	16
8.10	Transfer of Stock.	16
8.11	Stock Transfer Agreements.	16
8.12	Registered Stockholders.	16
8.13	Facsimile Signature	16
ARTICLE	IX AMENDMENTS	16

ii

#### BYLAWS OF CANNAVEST CORP.

#### ARTICLE I

## **CORPORATE OFFICES**

#### 1.1 <u>Registered Office.</u>

The registered office of the corporation shall be in the City of Wilmington County of New Castle, State of Delaware. The name of the registered agent of the corporation at such location is Corporation Service Company.

## 1.2 <u>Other Offices.</u>

The Board of Directors may at any time establish other offices at any place or places where the corporation is qualified to do business.

## ARTICLE II

## MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

## 2.1 <u>Place of Meetings.</u>

Meetings of stockholders shall be held at any place, within or outside the State of Delaware, designated by the Board of Directors. In the absence of any such designation, stockholders' meetings shall be held at the registered office of the corporation.

## 2.2 <u>Annual Meeting.</u>

The annual meeting of stockholders shall be held on such date, time and place, either within or without the State of Delaware, as may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors each year. At the meeting, directors shall be elected and any other proper business may be transacted.

#### 2.3 <u>Special Meeting.</u>

A special meeting of the stockholders may be called at any time by the Board of Directors, the chairman of the Board of Directors, the chief executive officer, the president or by one or more stockholders holding shares in the aggregate entitled to cast not less than ten percent (10%) of the votes at that meeting, as well as in the manner set forth in Article III, Section 3.4(b)(ii) for the purpose set forth therein.

If a special meeting is called by any person or persons other than the Board of Directors, the president, chief executive officer or the chairman of the Board of Directors, the request shall be in writing, specifying the time of such meeting and the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted, and shall be delivered personally or sent by registered mail or by telegraphic or other facsimile transmission to the chairman of the Board of Directors, the president, the chief executive officer, any vice president, or the secretary of the corporation. No business may be transacted at such special meeting otherwise than specified in such notice. The Board of Directors shall determine the time and place of such special meeting, which shall be held not less than thirty-five (35) nor more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the request. The officer receiving the request shall cause notice to be promptly given to the stockholders entitled to vote, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 2.4 and 2.5 of this Article II, that a meeting will be held at the time requested by the person or persons calling the meeting. If the notice is not given within sixty (60) days after the receipt of the request, the person or persons requesting the meeting may set the time and place of the meeting and give the notice. Nothing contained in this paragraph of this Section 2.3 shall be construed as limiting, fixing, or affecting the time when a meeting of stockholders called by action of the Board of Directors may be held.



## 2.4 <u>Notice of Stockholders' Meetings.</u>

All notices of meetings with stockholders shall be in writing and shall be sent or otherwise given in accordance with Section 2.5 of these bylaws not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting. The notice shall specify the place (if any), date and hour of the meeting, and in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called.

#### 2.5 <u>Manner of Giving Notice; Affidavit of Notice.</u>

Written notice of any meeting of stockholders, if mailed, is given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at his address as it appears on the records of the corporation. Without limiting the manner by which notice otherwise may be given effectively to stockholders, any notice to stockholders may be given by electronic mail or other electronic transmission, in the manner provided in Section 232 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. An affidavit of the secretary or an assistant secretary or of the transfer agent of the corporation that the notice has been given shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein.

## 2.6 <u>Quorum.</u>

The holders of a majority of the shares of stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the stockholders for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by statute or by the certificate of incorporation. If, however, such quorum is not present or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, then either (a) the chairman of the meeting or (b) holders of a majority of the shares of stock entitled to vote who are present, in person or by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting to another place (if any), date or time.

## 2.7 Adjourned Meeting; Notice.

When a meeting is adjourned to another place (if any), date or time, unless these bylaws otherwise require, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place (if any), thereof and the means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and proxyholders may be deemed to be present and vote at such adjourned meeting, are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the corporation may transact any business that might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than 30 days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, notice of the place (if any), date and time of the adjourned meeting and the means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be deemed to be present in person and vote at such adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

#### 2.8 Organization; Conduct of Business.

(a) Such person as the Board of Directors may have designated or, in the absence of such a person, the President of the corporation or, in his or her absence, such person as may be chosen by the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote who are present, in person or by proxy, shall call to order any meeting of the stockholders and act as chairman of the meeting. The secretary of the corporation shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in the absence of the secretary of the corporation, the secretary of the meeting appoints.

(b) The chairman of any meeting of stockholders shall determine the order of business and the procedure at the meeting, including the manner of voting and the conduct of business. The date and time of opening and closing of the polls for each matter upon which the stockholders will vote at the meeting shall be announced at the meeting.

#### 2.9 <u>Voting.</u>

The stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.12 of these bylaws, subject to the provisions of Sections 217 and 218 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware (relating to voting rights of fiduciaries, pledgors and joint owners of stock and to voting trusts and other voting agreements).

Except as may be otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, each stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share of capital stock held by such stockholder. All elections shall be determined by a plurality of the votes cast, and except as otherwise required by the certificate of incorporation or otherwise by law, all other matters shall be determined by a majority of the votes cast affirmatively or negatively.

#### 2.10 <u>Waiver of Notice.</u>

Whenever notice is required to be given under any provision of the General Corporation Law of Delaware or of the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, a written waiver thereof, signed by the person entitled to notice, or waiver by electronic mail or other electronic transmission by such person, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the stockholders need be specified in any written waiver of notice, or any waiver of notice by electronic transmission, unless so required by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws.

## 2.11 Stockholder Action By Written Consent Without A Meeting.

Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action required to be taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders of the corporation, or any action that may be taken at any annual or special meeting of such stockholders, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice, and without a vote if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is (i) signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, and (ii) delivered to the corporation in accordance with Section 228(a) of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Every written consent shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent and no written consent shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to therein unless, within 60 days of the date the earliest dated consent is delivered to the corporation, a written consent or consents signed by a sufficient number of holders to take action are delivered to the corporation in the manner prescribed in this Section. A telegram, cablegram, electronic mail or other electronic transmission consenting to an action to be taken and transmitted by a stockholder or proxyholder, or by a person or persons authorized to act for a stockholder or proxyholder, shall be deemed to be written, signed and dated for purposes of this Section to the extent permitted by law. Any such consent shall be delivered in accordance with Section 228(d)(1) of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Any copy, facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a consent in writing may be substituted or used in lieu of the original writing for any and all purposes for which the original writing could be used, provided that such copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the entire original writing.

Prompt notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous written consent shall be given to those stockholders who have not consented in writing (including by electronic mail or other electronic transmission as permitted by law). If the action which is consented to is such as would have required the filing of a certificate under any section of the General Corporation Law of Delaware if such action had been voted on by stockholders at a meeting thereof, then the certificate filed under such section shall state, in lieu of any statement required by such section concerning any vote of stockholders, that written notice and written consent have been given as provided in Section 228 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware.

## 2.12 <u>Record Date for Stockholder Notice; Voting; Giving Consents.</u>

In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, or entitled to express consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is accepted by the Board of Directors and which record date:

(a) in the case of determination of stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or adjournment thereof, shall, unless otherwise required by law, not be more than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting;

(b) in the case of determination of stockholders entitled to express consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, shall not be more than ten days after the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors; and

such other action.

(c) in the case of determination of stockholders for any other action, shall not be more than 60 days prior to

If the Board of Directors does not so fix a record date:

(d) The record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held.

(e) The record date for determining stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the Board of Directors is necessary, shall be the day on which the first written consent (including consent by electronic mail or other electronic transmission as permitted by law) is delivered to the corporation.

(f) The record date for determining stockholders for any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting, if such adjournment is for thirty (30) days or less; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

## 2.13 <u>Proxies.</u>

Each stockholder entitled to vote at a meeting of stockholders or to express consent or dissent to corporate action in writing without a meeting may authorize another person or persons to act for such stockholder by an instrument in writing or by an electronic transmission permitted by law filed with the secretary of the corporation, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three years from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period. A proxy shall be deemed signed if the stockholder's name is placed on the proxy (whether by manual signature, typewriting, facsimile, electronic or telegraphic transmission or otherwise) by the stockholder or the stockholder's attorney-in-fact. The revocability of a proxy that states on its face that it is irrevocable shall be governed by the provisions of Section 212(e) of the General Corporation Law of Delaware.

#### ARTICLE III

### DIRECTORS

#### 3.1 Powers.

Subject to the provisions of the General Corporation Law of Delaware and any limitations in the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws relating to action required to be approved by the stockholders or by the outstanding shares, the business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board of Directors.

## 3.2 <u>Number of Directors.</u>

Upon the adoption of these bylaws, the number of directors constituting the entire Board of Directors shall be four (4). Thereafter, this number may be changed by a resolution of the Board of Directors or of the stockholders, subject to the certificate of incorporation and Section 3.4 of these bylaws. No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director before such director's term of office expires.

#### 3.3 <u>Election, Qualification and Term of Office of Directors.</u>

(a) Except as provided in Section 3.4 of these bylaws, and unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of stockholders to hold office until the next annual meeting. Directors need not be stockholders unless so required by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, wherein other qualifications for directors may be prescribed. Each director, including a director elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until his or her successor is elected and qualified or until his or her earlier death, resignation or removal. Unless otherwise specified in the certificate of incorporation, elections of directors need not be by written ballot.

(b) No person entitled to vote at an election for directors may cumulate votes to which such person is entitled, unless, at the time of such election, the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the California General Corporation Law ("CGCL").

(c) During such time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, every stockholder entitled to vote at an election for directors may cumulate such stockholder's votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to which such stockholder's shares are otherwise entitled, or distribute the stockholder's votes on the same principle among as many candidates as such stockholder thinks fit. No stockholder, however, shall be entitled to so cumulate such stockholder's votes unless (a) the names of such candidate or candidates have been placed in nomination prior to the voting and (b) the stockholder has given notice at the meeting, prior to the voting, of such stockholder's intention to cumulate such stockholder's votes. If any stockholder has given proper notice to cumulate votes, all stockholders may cumulate their votes for any candidates who have been properly placed in nomination. Under cumulative voting, the candidates receiving the highest number of votes, up to the number of directors to be elected.

## 3.4 <u>Resignation and Vacancies.</u>

Any director may resign at any time upon written notice to the attention of the Secretary of the corporation. A resignation that is conditioned on the director failing to receive a specified vote for re-election as a director may provide that it is irrevocable. When one or more directors so resigns and the resignation is effective at a future date, subject to the certificate of incorporation, a majority of the directors then in office, including those who have so resigned, shall have power to fill such vacancy or vacancies, the vote thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations shall become effective, and each director so chosen shall hold office as provided in this section in the filling of other vacancies.

Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws:

(a) Vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors elected by all of the stockholders having the right to vote as a single class may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.

(b) Whenever the holders of any class or classes of stock or series thereof are entitled to elect one or more directors by the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, vacancies and newly created directorships of such class or classes or series may be filled by a majority of the directors elected by such class or classes or series thereof then in office, or by a sole remaining director so elected.

If at any time, by reason of death or resignation or other cause, the corporation should have no directors in office, then any officer or any stockholder or an executor, administrator, trustee or guardian of a stockholder, or other fiduciary entrusted with like responsibility for the person or estate of a stockholder, may call a special meeting of stockholders in accordance with the provisions of the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, or may apply to the Court of Chancery for a decree summarily ordering an election as provided in Section 211 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware.

If, at the time of filling any vacancy or any newly created directorship, the directors then in office constitute less than a majority of the whole Board of Directors (as constituted immediately prior to any such increase), then either:

(i) the Court of Chancery may, upon application of any stockholder or stockholders holding at least 10% of the total number of the shares at the time outstanding having the right to vote for such directors, summarily order an election to be held to fill any such vacancies or newly created directorships, or to replace the directors chosen by the directors then in office as aforesaid, which election shall be governed by the provisions of Section 211 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware as far as applicable, or

(ii) if at such time the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, any holder or holders of an aggregate of five percent (5%) or more of the total number of shares at the time outstanding having the right to vote for those directors may call a special meeting of stockholders, or the Superior Court of the proper county of California shall, upon application of such stockholder or stockholders, summarily order a special meeting of the stockholders, to be held to elect the entire Board of Directors, all in accordance with Section 305(c) of the CGCL, and the term of office of any director shall terminate upon that election of a successor.

#### 3.5 <u>Place of Meetings; Meetings by Telephone.</u>

The Board of Directors of the corporation may hold meetings, both regular and special, either within or outside the State of Delaware.

Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, members of the Board of Directors, or any committee designated by the Board of Directors, may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors, or any committee, by means of conference telephone or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

## 3.6 <u>Regular Meetings.</u>

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors.

## 3.7 <u>Special Meetings; Notice.</u>

Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman of the Board of Directors, the chief executive officer, the president, the secretary or any two directors at such time as the Board is constituted with two or more directors. If the Board of Directors is constituted of one director, special meetings may also be called by the sole director.

Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be delivered personally, by hand, by courier, or by telephone to each director or sent by first-class mail, facsimile, electronic transmission, or telegram, charges prepaid, addressed to each director at that director's address as it is shown on the records of the corporation. If the notice is mailed, it shall be deposited in the United States mail at least four days before the time of the holding of the meeting. If the notice is delivered personally, by hand, by courier or by facsimile, electronic transmission, telephone or telegram, it shall be delivered at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time of the holding of the meeting. Any oral notice given personally or by telephone may be communicated either to the director or to a person at the office of the director who the person giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the director. The notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. If the meeting is to be held at the principal executive office of the corporation. Unless otherwise indicated in the notice thereof, any and all business may be transacted at a special meeting.

#### 3.8 <u>Quorum.</u>

At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the total number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by the certificate of incorporation. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of the Board of Directors, then the directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum is present. Interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors or at a meeting of a committee which authorizes a particular contract or transaction.

A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting.

## 3.9 <u>Waiver of Notice.</u>

Whenever notice is required to be given under any provision of the General Corporation Law of Delaware or of the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, a written waiver thereof, signed by the person entitled to notice, or waiver by electronic mail or other electronic transmission by such person, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the directors, or members of a committee of directors, need be specified in any written waiver of notice unless so required by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws.

## 3.10 Board Action By Written Consent Without A Meeting.

Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors, or of any committee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing or by electronic transmission, and the writing or writings or electronic transmission or transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors or committee. Such filing shall be in paper form if the minutes are maintained in paper form and shall be in electronic form if the minutes are maintained in electronic form.

Any copy, facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a consent in writing may be substituted or used in lieu of the original writing for any and all purposes for which the original writing could be used, provided that such copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the entire original writing.

#### 3.11 Fees and Compensation of Directors.

Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to fix the compensation of directors. No such compensation shall preclude any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.

#### 3.12 Approval of Loans to Officers.

To the extent permitted by law, the corporation may lend money to, or guarantee any obligation of, or otherwise assist any officer or other employee of the corporation or of its subsidiary, including any officer or employee who is a director of the corporation or its subsidiary, whenever, in the judgment of the directors, such loan, guaranty or assistance may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. The loan, guaranty or other assistance may be with or without interest and may be unsecured, or secured in such manner as the Board of Directors shall approve, including, without limitation, a pledge of shares of stock of the corporation. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to deny, limit or restrict the powers of guaranty or warranty of the corporation at common law or under any statute.

#### 3.13 <u>Removal of Directors.</u>

(a) Subject to any limitations imposed by applicable law (and assuming the corporation is not subject to Section 2115 of the CGCL), the Board of Directors or any director may be removed from office at any time (i) with cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of directors or (ii) without cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of directors.

(b) During such time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, the Board of Directors or any individual director may be removed from office at any time without cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such removal; provided, however, that unless the entire Board is removed, no individual director may be removed when the votes cast against such director's removal, or not consenting in writing to such removal, would be sufficient to elect that director if voted cumulatively at an election which the same total number of votes were cast (or, if such action is taken by written consent, all shares entitled to vote were voted) and the entire number of directors authorized at the time of such director's most recent election were then being elected.

(c) Whenever the holders of any class or series are entitled to elect one or more directors by the certificate of incorporation, the applicable provision of (a) or (b) above shall apply to the vote of the holders of the outstanding shares of that class or series and not to the vote of the outstanding shares as a whole.

#### 3.14 Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The corporation may have, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, a chairman of the Board of Directors who may or may not be considered an officer of the corporation, at the election of the Board of Directors.

## 3.15 <u>Conduct of Business.</u>

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be presided over by the chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, or in his absence by a chairperson designated by the Board of Directors, or in the absence of such designation by a chairperson chosen at the meeting. The Secretary of the corporation shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in his or her absence the chairman of the meeting may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting.

#### ARTICLE IV

#### COMMITTEES

### 4.1 <u>Committees of Directors.</u>

The Board of Directors may designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the directors of the corporation. The Board may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. In the absence or disqualification of a member of a committee, the member or members present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not such member or members constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors, or in these bylaws, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, and may authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it; but no such committee shall have the power or authority in reference to the following matters: (i) approving or adopting, or recommending to the stockholders, any action or matter expressly required by the General Corporate Law of Delaware to be submitted to stockholders for approval or (ii) adopting, amending or repealing any bylaw of the corporation.

## 4.2 <u>Committee Minutes.</u>

Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and report the same to the Board of Directors when required.

### 4.3 <u>Meetings and Action of Committees.</u>

Meetings and actions of committees shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Section 3.5 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone), Section 3.6 (regular meetings), Section 3.7 (special meetings and notice), Section 3.8 (quorum), Section 3.9 (waiver of notice), and Section 3.10 (action without a meeting) of these bylaws, with such changes in the context of such provisions as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board of Directors and its members; provided, however, that the time of regular meetings of committees may be determined either by resolution of the Board of Directors or by resolution of the committee, that special meetings of committees may also be called by resolution of the Board of Directors and that notice of special meetings of committees shall also be given to all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings of the committee. The Board of Directors may adopt rules for the governance of any committee not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws.

### 4.4 <u>Subcommittees.</u>

Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, these bylaws or the resolutions of the Board designating the committee, a committee may create one or more subcommittees, each subcommittee to consist of one or more members of the committee, and delegate to a subcommittee any or all of the powers and authority of the committee.

#### ARTICLE V

# **OFFICERS**

## 5.1 Officers.

The officers of the corporation shall be a chief executive officer (who shall, unless another officer is appointed as such, also be the corporation's president), a president, a secretary, a treasurer and a chief financial officer. The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, one or more assistant treasurers, and any such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.3 of these bylaws. Any number of offices may be held by the same person.

# 5.2 <u>Appointment of Officers.</u>

The officers of the corporation, except such officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Sections 5.3 or 5.5 of these bylaws, shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment.

# 5.3 <u>Subordinate Officers.</u>

The Board of Directors may appoint, or empower the chief executive officer or the president to appoint, such other officers and agents as the business of the corporation may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided in these bylaws or as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

# 5.4 <u>Removal and Resignation of Officers.</u>

Subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors or, except in the case of an officer chosen by the Board of Directors, by any officer upon whom the power of removal is conferred by the Board of Directors.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation. Any resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of that notice or at any later time specified in that notice; and, unless otherwise specified in that notice, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any resignation is without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party.

# 5.5 <u>Vacancies in Offices.</u>

Any vacancy occurring in any office of the corporation shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

#### 5.6 <u>Chief Executive Officer.</u>

Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by the Board of Directors to the chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, the chief executive officer of the corporation (if such an officer is appointed) shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction, and control of the business and the officers of the corporation. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and, in the absence or nonexistence of a chairman of the Board of Directors, at all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the office of chief executive officer of a corporation and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these bylaws.

## 5.7 <u>President.</u>

Should the Board of Directors designate an officer other than the chief executive officer as the president of the corporation, subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by the Board of Directors to the chairman of the Board of Directors (if any) or the chief executive officer, the president shall have general supervision, direction, and control of the business and other officers of the corporation. He or she shall have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the office of president of a corporation and such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these bylaws.

## 5.8 <u>Vice Presidents.</u>

In the absence or disability of the chief executive officer and president, the vice presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board of Directors or, if not ranked, a vice president designated by the Board of Directors, shall perform all the duties of the president and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the president. The vice presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the Board of Directors, these bylaws, the chief executive officer, the president or the chairman of the Board of Directors.

### 5.9 Secretary and Assistant Secretary.

The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office of the corporation or such other place as the Board of Directors may direct, a book of minutes of all meetings and actions of directors, committees of directors, and stockholders. The minutes shall show the time and place of each meeting, the names of those present at directors' meetings or committee meetings, the number of shares present or represented at stockholders' meetings, and the proceedings thereof.

The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office of the corporation or at the office of the corporation's transfer agent or registrar, as determined by resolution of the Board of Directors, a share register, or a duplicate share register, showing the names of all stockholders and their addresses, the number and classes of shares held by each, the number and date of certificates evidencing such shares, and the number and date of cancellation of every certificate surrendered for cancellation.

The secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the stockholders and of the Board of Directors required to be given by law or by these bylaws. He or she shall keep the seal of the corporation, if one be adopted, in safe custody and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by these bylaws. In the absence or disability of the Secretary, the Assistant Secretaries, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the Board of Directors, or if not ranked, in the order of their election, shall perform all the duties of the Secretary and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the Secretary. The Assistant Secretaries shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the Board of Directors, these bylaws, the chief executive officer, the president, the chairman of the Board of Directors, or the Secretary.

## 5.10 Chief Financial Officer.

Unless otherwise designated by the Board of Directors, the chief financial officer shall be the corporation's treasurer. The chief financial officer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital retained earnings, and shares. The books of account shall at all reasonable times be open to inspection by any director.

The chief financial officer shall deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. He or she shall disburse the funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, shall render to the president, the chief executive officer, or the directors, upon request, an account of all his or her transactions as chief financial officer and of the financial condition of the corporation, and shall have other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or the bylaws.

### 5.11 <u>Representation of Shares of Other Corporations.</u>

The chairman of the Board of Directors, the chief executive officer, the president, any vice president, the chief financial officer, the secretary or assistant secretary of this corporation, or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors or the chief executive officer or the president or a vice president, is authorized to vote, represent, and exercise on behalf of this corporation all rights incident to any and all shares of any other corporation or corporations standing in the name of this corporation. The authority granted herein may be exercised either by such person directly or by any other person authorized to do so by proxy or power of attorney duly executed by the person having such authority.

## 5.12 Authority and Duties of Officers.

In addition to the foregoing authority and duties, all officers of the corporation shall respectively have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the business of the corporation as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors or the stockholders.

### ARTICLE VI

## INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

### 6.1 <u>Right to Indemnification.</u>

Each person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative and whether by or in the right of the corporation or otherwise (a "proceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or officer of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee, partner (limited or general) or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to an employee benefit plan, shall be (and shall be deemed to have a contractual right to be) indemnified and held harmless by the corporation (and any successor to the corporation by merger or otherwise) to the fullest extent authorized by, and subject to the conditions and (except as provided herein) procedures set forth in the Delaware General Corporation Law (or such other applicable law), as such applicable law exists or may hereafter be amended (but any such amendment shall not be deemed to limit or prohibit the rights of indemnification hereunder for past acts or omissions of any such person insofar as such amendment limits or prohibits the indemnification rights that said law permitted the corporation to provide prior to such amendment), against all expenses, liabilities and losses (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA taxes or penalties and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection therewith if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation (or in accordance with such other standard as may be required for such indemnification under applicable law), and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such person's conduct was unlawful; provided, however, that the corporation shall indemnify any such person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person (except for a suit or action pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof) only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors or otherwise provided by applicable law. The termination of any proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that such person's conduct was unlawful. Persons who are not directors or officers of the corporation and are not so serving at the request of the corporation may be similarly indemnified in respect of such service to the extent authorized at any time by the Board of Directors. The indemnification conferred in this Section 6.1 also shall include, if permitted by applicable law, the right to be paid by the corporation (and such successor) the expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in the defense of or other involvement in any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition; provided, however, that, if and to the extent the Delaware General Corporation Law or such other applicable law requires, the payment of such expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by a director or officer in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding shall be made only upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to repay all amounts so paid in advance if it shall ultimately be determined that such director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified under this Section 6.1 or otherwise; and provided further, that such expenses incurred by other employees and agents may be so paid in advance upon such terms and conditions, if any, as the Board deems appropriate. To the extent that a present or former director or officer of the corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding described in this Section 6.1, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith.

#### 6.2 <u>Right of Claimant to Bring Action Against the Corporation.</u>

If a claim under Section 6.1 is not paid in full by the corporation within 60 days after a written claim has been received by the corporation, the claimant may at any time thereafter bring an action against the corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim and, if successful in whole or in part, the claimant shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting such action. It shall be a defense to any such action (other than an action brought to enforce a claim for expenses incurred in connection with any proceeding in advance of its final disposition where the required undertaking, if any is required, has been tendered to the corporation) that the claimant has not met the standards of conduct that make it permissible under the Delaware General Corporation Law (or any other applicable law) for the corporation to indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed or is otherwise not entitled to indemnification under Section 6.1, but the burden of proving such defense shall be on the corporation. The failure of the corporation to have made a determination (in the manner provided under the Delaware General Corporation Law or any other applicable law) prior to or after the commencement of such action that indemnification of the claimant is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the Delaware General Corporation Law (or any other applicable law) shall not be a defense to the action or create a presumption that the claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct. Unless otherwise specified in an agreement with the claimant, an actual determination by the corporation (in the manner provided under the Delaware General Corporation Law or any other applicable law) after the commencement of such action that the claimant has not met the claimant has not met such applicable standard of conduct. Unless otherwise specified in an agreement with the claimant, an actual determination by the corporation (in the manner provided under the Delaware Gene

## 6.3 <u>Non-Exclusivity.</u>

The rights to indemnification and advance payment of expenses provided by Section 6.1 hereof shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification and advance payment of expenses may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office.

### 6.4 <u>Indemnification Contracts.</u>

The Board of Directors is authorized to enter into a contract with any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or any person serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including employee benefit plans, providing for indemnification rights equivalent to or, if the Board of Directors so determines, greater than, those provided for in this Article VI to the fullest extent not prohibited by the Delaware General Corporation Law or any other applicable law.

### 6.5 <u>Insurance.</u>

The corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee, partner (limited or general) or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against such person or incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of such person's status as such, and related expenses, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law or any other applicable law.

### 6.6 <u>Survival of Indemnification.</u>

The indemnification and advance payment of expenses and rights thereto provided by, or granted pursuant to, Section 6.1 hereof shall, unless otherwise provided when authorized or ratified, continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee, partner or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the personal representatives, heirs, executors and administrators of such person.

# 6.7 Effect of Amendment.

Any amendment, repeal or modification of any provision of this Article VI by the stockholders and the directors of the corporation shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director or officer of the corporation existing at the time of such amendment, repeal or modification.

## 6.8 <u>Saving Clause.</u>

If this Article VI, or any portion hereof, shall be invalidated on any ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the corporation shall nonetheless indemnify each director and officer to the full extent not prohibited by any applicable portion of this Article VI that shall not have been invalidated, or by any other applicable law. If this Article VI shall be invalid due to the application of the indemnification provisions of the corporations code of another jurisdiction than the State of Delaware, then the corporation shall indemnify each director and officer to the full extent permitted under the law of such jurisdiction.

### ARTICLE VII

### **RECORDS AND REPORTS**

## 7.1 <u>Maintenance and Inspection of Records.</u>

The corporation shall, either at its principal executive offices or at such place or places as designated by the Board of Directors, keep a record of its stockholders listing their names and addresses and the number and class of shares held by each stockholder, a copy of these bylaws as amended to date, accounting books, and other records.

#### 13

Any stockholder of record, in person or by attorney or other agent, shall, upon written demand under oath stating the purpose thereof, have the right during the usual hours for business to inspect for any proper purpose the corporation's stock ledger, a list of its stockholders, and its other books and records and to make copies or extracts therefrom. A proper purpose shall mean a purpose reasonably related to such person's interest as a stockholder. In every instance where an attorney or other agent is the person who seeks the right to inspection, the demand under oath shall be accompanied by a power of attorney or such other writing that authorizes the attorney or other agent to so act on behalf of the stockholder. The demand under oath shall be directed to the corporation at its registered office in Delaware or at its principal place of business.

A complete list of stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders, arranged in alphabetical order for each class of stock and showing the address of each such stockholder and the number of shares registered in each such stockholder's name, shall be open to the examination of any such stockholder for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting in the manner provided by law. The stock list shall also be open to the examination of any stockholder during the whole time of the meeting as provided by law. This list shall presumptively determine the identity of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting and the number of shares held by each of them.

If at such time the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, the Board of Directors shall cause an annual report to be sent to the stockholders not later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of the fiscal year adopted by the corporation. Such report shall be sent at least fifteen (15) days (or, if sent by third-class mail, thirty-five (35) days) before the annual meeting of shareholders to be held during the next fiscal year and in the manner specified in these bylaws or otherwise permitted by law for giving notice to stockholders of the corporation. The annual report shall contain (i) a balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year, (ii) an income statement, (iii) a statement of cash flows for the fiscal year, and (iv) any report of independent accountants or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that the statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of the corporation. The foregoing requirement of an annual report shall be waived so long as the shares of the corporation are held by fewer than one hundred (100) holders of record.

### 7.2 <u>Inspection by Directors.</u>

Any director shall have the right to examine the corporation's stock ledger, a list of its stockholders, and its other books and records for a purpose reasonably related to his or her position as a director. The Court of Chancery is hereby vested with the exclusive jurisdiction to determine whether a director is entitled to the inspection sought. The Court may summarily order the corporation to permit the director to inspect any and all books and records, the stock ledger, and the stock list and to make copies or extracts therefrom. The Court may, in its discretion, prescribe any limitations or conditions with reference to the inspection, or award such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

# ARTICLE VIII

#### **GENERAL MATTERS**

# 8.1 <u>Checks.</u>

From time to time, the Board of Directors shall determine by resolution which person or persons may sign or endorse all checks, drafts, other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness that are issued in the name of or payable to the corporation, and only the persons so authorized shall sign or endorse those instruments.

#### 8.2 Execution of Corporate Contracts and Instruments.

The Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers, or agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation; such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized or ratified by the Board of Directors or within the agency power of an officer, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or for any amount.

## 8.3 <u>Stock Certificates; Partly Paid Shares.</u>

The shares of the corporation shall be represented by certificates, provided that the Board of Directors of the corporation may provide by resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all classes or series of its stock shall be uncertificated shares. Any such resolution shall not apply to shares represented by a certificate until such certificate is surrendered to the corporation. Notwithstanding the adoption of such a resolution by the Board of Directors, every holder of stock represented by certificates and upon request every holder of uncertificated shares shall be entitled to have a certificate signed by, or in the name of the corporation by the chairman or vice-chairman of the Board of Directors, or the president or vice-president, and by the treasurer or an assistant treasurer, or the secretary or an assistant secretary of such corporation representing the number of shares registered in certificate form. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate has ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he or she were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue.

The corporation may issue the whole or any part of its shares as partly paid and subject to call for the remainder of the consideration to be paid therefor. Upon the face or back of each stock certificate issued to represent any such partly paid shares, upon the books and records of the corporation in the case of uncertificated partly paid shares, the total amount of the consideration to be paid therefor and the amount paid thereon shall be stated. Upon the declaration of any dividend on fully paid shares, the corporation shall declare a dividend upon partly paid shares of the same class, but only upon the basis of the percentage of the consideration actually paid thereon.

#### 8.4 <u>Special Designation on Certificates.</u>

If the corporation is authorized to issue more than one class of stock or more than one series of any class, then the powers, the designations, the preferences, and the relative, participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights shall be set forth in full or summarized on the face or back of the certificate that the corporation shall issue to represent such class or series of stock; provided, however, that, except as otherwise provided in Section 202 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware, in lieu of the foregoing requirements there may be set forth on the face or back of the certificate that the corporation shall issue to represent such class or series of stock a statement that the corporation will furnish without charge to each stockholder who so requests the powers, the designations, the preferences, and the relative, participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, the preferences and/or rights.

## 8.5 <u>Lost Certificates.</u>

Except as provided in this Section 8.5, no new certificates for shares shall be issued to replace a previously issued certificate unless the latter is surrendered to the corporation and cancelled at the same time. The corporation may issue a new certificate of stock or uncertificated shares in the place of any certificate previously issued by it, alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, and the corporation may require the owner of the lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, or the owner's legal representative, to give the corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it against any claim that may be made against it on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of any such certificate or the issuance of such new certificate or uncertificated shares.

## 8.6 <u>Construction; Definitions.</u>

Unless the context requires otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction and definitions in the Delaware General Corporation Law shall govern the construction of these bylaws, except that if Section 2115(b) of the CGCL applies, the general provision rules of construction and definitions of the CGCL applicable pursuant to Section 2115(b) shall govern the construction of the affected section of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of this provision, the singular number includes the plural, the plural number includes the singular, and the term "person" includes both a corporation and a natural person.

#### 8.7 <u>Dividends.</u>

The directors of the corporation, subject to any restrictions contained in (a) the General Corporation Law of Delaware or, if Section 2115(b) of the CGCL applies, the CGCL or (b) the certificate of incorporation, may declare and pay dividends upon the shares of its capital stock. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the corporation's capital stock.

The directors of the corporation may set apart out of any of the funds of the corporation available for dividends a reserve or reserves for any proper purpose and may abolish any such reserve. Such purposes shall include but not be limited to equalizing dividends, repairing or maintaining any property of the corporation, and meeting contingencies.

### 8.8 Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors and may be changed by the Board of Directors.

#### 8.9 <u>Seal.</u>

The corporation may adopt a corporate seal, which may be altered at pleasure, and may use the same by causing it or a facsimile thereof, to be impressed or affixed or in any other manner reproduced.

### 8.10 <u>Transfer of Stock.</u>

Upon surrender to the corporation or the transfer agent of the corporation of a certificate for shares duly endorsed or accompanied by proper evidence of succession, assignation or authority to transfer, it shall be the duty of the corporation to issue a new certificate to the person entitled thereto, cancel the old certificate, and record the transaction in its books.

# 8.11 <u>Stock Transfer Agreements.</u>

The corporation shall have power to enter into and perform any agreement with any number of stockholders of any one or more classes of stock of the corporation to restrict the transfer of shares of stock of the corporation of any one or more classes owned by such stockholders in any manner not prohibited by the General Corporation Law of Delaware.

# 8.12 <u>Registered Stockholders.</u>

The corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends and to vote as such owner, shall be entitled to hold liable for calls and assessments the person registered on its books as the owner of shares, and shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of another person, whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.

## 8.13 <u>Facsimile Signature</u>

In addition to the provisions for use of facsimile signatures elsewhere specifically authorized in these bylaws, facsimile signatures of any officer or officers of the corporation may be used whenever and as authorized by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof.

#### ARTICLE IX

#### AMENDMENTS

The bylaws of the corporation may be adopted, amended or repealed by the stockholders entitled to vote; provided, however, that the corporation may, in its certificate of incorporation, confer the power to adopt, amend or repeal bylaws upon the directors. The fact that such power has been so conferred upon the directors shall not divest the stockholders of the power, nor limit their power to adopt, amend or repeal bylaws.

# CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION OF BYLAWS OF CANNAVEST CORP.

The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary of CannaVEST Corp., a Delaware corporation (the "Corporation"), and that the foregoing Bylaws, comprising twenty-two (22) pages, were adopted as the Bylaws of the Corporation as of June 26, 2013 by unanimous written consent of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his hand this 26th day of June, 2013.

/s/ Michael Mona, Jr. Michael Mona, Jr., Secretary

### EXHIBIT 31.1

### CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Mona, Jr., certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CannaVEST Corp.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under my supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report my conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and
  - b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: August 13, 2013

By: <u>/s/ Michael Mona, Jr.</u> Name Michael Mona, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer

## **EXHIBIT 32.1**

## CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 (SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)

In connection with the Quarterly Report of CannaVEST Corp. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Michael Mona, Jr., President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
- 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company for the period covered by the Report.

Dated: August 13, 2013

By: <u>/s/ Michael Mona, Jr.</u> Name: Michael Mona, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEMPORARY HARDSHIP EXEMPTION PROVIDED BY RULE 201 OF REGULATION S-T, THE DATE BY WHICH THE INTERACTIVE DATA FILE IS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED HAS BEEN EXTENDED BY SIX BUSINESS DAYS.